
 

 

 

PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 
December 2, 2022 



 

 

PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

December 2, 2022 
Meeting: 10:00 AM, Eastern 

WebEx Link: https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m101729633d6c2a324c222e9f79361980 
Meeting Code: 2309 057 5357, Password: CCOC 

Conference Call: 1-866-469-3239, Access Code: 2309 057 5357 
 
1) Call to Order and Approve Agenda .............................................Hon. Laura E. Roth 

2) Approve minutes from 8/31/22 Meeting .................................Marleni Bruner 

3) CFY 2021-22 Quarter 4 PMAP Report .......................................Marleni Bruner 

4) Case/Subcases Update ..............................................................Jason L. Welty 

5) Uniform Payment Plan ................................................................Jason L. Welty 

6) Other Business ............................................................................Hon. Laura E. Roth 
 

 

Committee Members: Laura E. Roth (Volusia), Chair, Gary J. Cooney (Lake), Roger D. Eaton 
(Charlotte), Brenda D. Forman (Broward), Tara S. Green (Clay), Crystal K. Kinzel (Collier), Matt 
Reynolds (Putnam), Tiffany Moore Russell (Orange), Victoria L. Rogers (Hardee), Clayton O. Rooks 
(Jackson), Angela Vick (Citrus) 

https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m101729633d6c2a324c222e9f79361980


 

 

Minutes of August 31, 2022, PIE Committee Meeting 
 

Committee Action: Review and approve with amendments as necessary. 
 
The PIE Committee of the Clerk of Courts Operation Corporation (CCOC) held a meeting via 
WebEx on August 31, 2022. An agenda and materials were distributed before the meeting 
and posted on the CCOC website. Provided below is a summary of staff notes from the 
meeting. These staff notes are designed to document committee action, not to be a 
complete record of committee discussions. All motions adopted by the committee are in 
bold text. All action items based on committee direction are in red and bold text. 
 

1. Agenda Item 1 – Call to Order and Approve Agenda 
 
Clerk Laura Roth, PIE Committee Chair, called the meeting to order. Marleni Bruner, 
CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director, conducted the roll call. 
 
Present for meeting via Webex: Clerk Laura Roth, Clerk Tara Green, Clerk Kinzel, 
Clerk Matt Reynolds, Clerk Tiffany Moore Russell, Clerk Clayton Rooks. 
 
Absent from the meeting: Clerk Gary J. Cooney, Clerk Roger Eaton, and Clerk Brenda 
Forman, Clerk Victoria L. Rogers, Clerk Angela Vick 
 
Clerk Roth informed the committee of membership changes. Clerk Kinzel joined the 
PIE Committee and Clerk Timmann left the committee. 
 
A motion to approve the agenda was made by Clerk Green and seconded by Clerk 
Rooks. The motion was adopted without objection.  
 

2. Agenda Item 2 – Approve Minutes from 2/28/2022 Meeting 
 
A motion to approve the agenda was made by Clerk Rooks and seconded by Clerk 
Russell. The minutes were adopted without objection. 
 

3. Agenda Item 3 – CFY 2021-2022 Quarter 3 Performance Measures and Action Plans 
Report 

3



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Clerk Roth requested Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education 
Director to give the highlights from the CFY 2021-22 Quarter 3 Performance 
Measures and Action Plans Report. Ms. Bruner explained that a few counties had 
missing information then the revised versions did not appear in the email on the 
CCOC side but showed sent on the county side.  
 
There were 49 clerk offices that required an action plan related to collections, seven 
clerk offices required an action plan for not filing cases timely, and six clerk offices 
required an action plan for not docketing cases timely. Five counties did not issue 
jury summons, and 64 counties issued payments. Of the counties that issued jury 
summons, five counties required an action plan for not paying jurors on time. The 
report is posted on the CCOC website: https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr. 
 
Jason Welty, CCOC Deputy Executive Director, was asked to provide the Performance 
Measure Spotlight. Mr. Welty explained that this is something staff did last time for 
the committee, and we plan to do with each quarterly meeting for informational 
purposes. Mr. Welty further explained that while this is informational only, it also 
provides some good data as it relates to the trends of where clerks are regarding 
collections performance.  
 
The chart in the meeting packet shows six years of data. The first three quarters from 
each of those fiscal years is then compared to show each county’s collections 
performance over the last six years. Overall, from October 1, 2020, through June 30, 
2021, was $515 million of assessed in criminal and civil traffic court divisions. Civil 
was left out on purpose because most of the collection rate for civil is 99.9% because 
the filing fee is collected up front. The focus of this chart was on the criminal court 
divisions because that's the one area that compliance and collections programs 
should be targeting. From that period of time, we have collected 54.49%. And that 
collection rate is in line with the first three quarters of the last couple of fiscal years, 
but it is slightly down from the collection rate we saw through the first two quarters of 
this fiscal year, which was 57%. The revenue collected in July of 2022 was $35.1 
million which is one of the lowest months this year (possibly the fourth lowest this 
year). It is also the lowest July in the last five years except for the pandemic related 
July of 2020.  
 
As civil cases continued a downward trend statewide, clerks can offset that civil 
revenue decline with increased collections on the criminal and civil traffic funds 
owed. This report spotlights the importance of compliance efforts.  
 
Clerk Roth thanked Mr. Welty, and noted that foreshadowing of where the case and 
revenue trends are, and that the next agenda item would focus on the case and sub 
case update to show the case filing trends as well.  

4

https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr


 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Clerk Green asked if the report provides explanation from counties that did not meet 
their measures because she noticed several counties that are well below the average 
on the collections, for example under 40%, while there are several counties who are 
way above the average, in the high 70%. She wondered if there were demographics 
that go into play. Are their residents lower or higher income? Do we know what their 
collection efforts are within those counties? 
 
Mr. Welty explained that the CCOC has not been reaching out to individual clerks, but 
it is one of the things that he would like to start seeing having the CCOC do. He noted 
that this is the second time it has been presented to the PIE Committee and the 
purpose was to get clerks asking questions as Clerk Green has done. It is meant to 
generate dialogue. He also pointed out that because this includes drug trafficking, 
collection rates and dip significantly. This can be seen in a small county or if you have 
multiple mandatory minimum fines in drug trafficking. Mr. Welty also noted that we 
look for explanations on the action plans and stated there is room for improvement 
on those explanations. He agreed that CCOC can start reaching out to get more 
information, as well as getting initial information from county submissions. 
 
Clerk Roth pointed out that at the last Executive Council meeting they asked the PIE 
Committee to gather more information on details about collection methods. Clerk 
Green agreed that some of it is a data point and some of it is more of a conversation. 
She stated that it is one thing to implement Best Practices for collections and to 
check the box, but it is another to provide explanation about other external factors 
that could control how high or how low a county could collect. Clerk Green was 
pleased with Mr. Welty’s chart and the ability to see outliers, those outside the norm. 
She stated that if a county needs to boost their compliance efforts, then the 
discussion can be about how to get them resources but if they’ve done all that and 
they’re still at their collection rate, then it is more of a demographic issue, and that 
can be understood. 
 
Ms. Bruner pointed out that the CCOC is making that effort with the CIS contract and 
has provided regional compliance training to small counties. The next training will be 
in Alachua County. She pointed out that the CCOC can use the compliance 
improvement contract to have them get out in the weeds with counties on behalf of 
CCOC. 
 
Mr. Welty stated that the CCOC is putting the information out, but hopes that other 
clerks see this information and then then do their own assessments of what can they 
do better or reach out to other counties to find out what they are doing. He noted that 
he hopes to continue these conversations. Mr. Welty stated for example, Clerk 
Reynolds is on the is on the PIE Committee, he has met with CIS and he's working to 
increase his performance in collections. 

5



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Clerk Green had two suggestions for this report to encourage those conversations Mr. 
Welty referred to. One, would be produced this report by peer group, because that's 
one level of how clerks are similar. Another way would be to maybe have it sorted by 
district. That way, at a district caucus meeting, the district director can bring this into 
the conversation and say, “I know we may be in the same district or same regional 
area, but potentially our communities are very different. Let's talk about why maybe 
we have a vast difference in our in our collection rates when it comes to criminal and 
civil.” 
 
Mr. Welty stated that as long as Clerk Roth is okay with it, he could easily add peer 
groups and he can work with FCCC to get the district information.  
 
Clerk Kinzel wanted to know if information relating to using collection agencies could 
be added with the percent of payment plans versus the collection rate, because a 
payment plan outside the length of the collection report could hinder maximum 
collections.  
 
Mr. Welty responded that all counties complete the Collection Agent report yearly and 
that currently everyone in the state is using at least one collection agent. He noted 
that he may not be able to address the second part of Clerk Kinzel’s question 
because the CCOC does not collect information on payment plans. That is something 
that the future performance measure workgroup is working on. In the next few 
months, he’s hoping to have a recommendation from the workgroup to start looking 
at payment plans, because he agrees that a payment plan that stretches 18 months, 
looks like a failure on this report. Mr. Welty believe that is one of the limitations of 
this performance measure. If you do something that helps a constituent because 
they can only afford to pay $25 a month on a $2,000 fine, it will look like you failed 
to collect for this report. 
 
Clerk Reynolds wanted to chime in that it was shocking for him to see Putnam as the 
lowest county on the list. He stated that he was definitely committed to improvement 
as Mr. Welty mentioned earlier. Putnam has already met with CIS, but he’s 
committed to revamping their compliance program making sure they are doing 
everything they possibly can. He further stated that if there are different things that 
clerks think of throughout the state or the PIE Committee as a whole, or the Best 
Practices committee as a whole want to try he is willing to be a test county.  
 
Clerk Patty wanted to know that if a county was able to meet the performance 
measure, if there was a way to calculate the additional revenue that was generated.  
 
Mr. Welty explained that while the final numbers shown were rolled up, that yes, he 
can calculate the additional revenue collected if clerks improve their collection 

6



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

efforts. He explained that it is looking at the total assessment not just clerk revenue, 
For example, in civil traffic, of the total assessment clerk's collect about 35%. If it was 
increased by 1%, that would generate an extra $3 million of which the clerk would 
collect $1 million dollars. Clerk Patty asked Mr. Welty to provide that information for 
Saint Johns County.  

 
4. Agenda Item 4 – Update on PIE Workgroups 

 
Ms. Bruner provided an update on the Collections and Timeliness Workgroup Meeting 
since the last PIE Committee meeting. The workgroup selected several counties to 
participate as pilot counties to gather and track data. They will meet on September 
13, at 2 PM via WebEx to review the information. Call-in information will be posted on 
the CCOC website. The workgroup will review the data and then see if any 
recommendations will be made, if they will add more counties, or if they want to 
continue the pilot longer.  
 
Mr. Welty’s workgroup, the Future and Wholistic workgroup, do not have anything to 
report and neither does the Case Weights and Framework workgroup. However, the 
workgroup received direction from the last Executive Council meeting when Clerk 
Alvarez-Sowles wanted more information on looking at case weights and how they 
were determined. Mr. Welty has a document that Doug Isabelle (retired CCOC 
Executive Director) had drafted when the case weights were originally created. CCOC 
staff is going to look at that document and look at all the actions that have taken 
place since that time and put together a more comprehensive report, hopefully, in 
the coming months, be on the lookout for more there. 
 
One of the items on the PIE Committee’s workplan for the upcoming fiscal year is to 
get that case weights workgroup activated again, to review all of the weights. Clerk 
Roth pointed out that Mr. Welty’s Future and Wholistic workgroup is looking at more 
of our what do we measure and why do we measure it, how does it play into the big 
picture. Mr. Welty apologized for not engaging his workgroup this past quarter.  
 
Clerk Green requested to know the Clerks chairing the workgroups. Ms. Bruner stated 
that she is the lead for the Collections and Timeliness Workgroup, Mr. Welty is the 
lead for the Future and Wholistic workgroup, and Case Weights and Framework is led 
by Clerk Cooney, who was traveling and unable to be able to call today. Ms. Bruner 
clarified that it was all clerk staff members on the Collections and Timeliness 
workgroup because it's looking at the actual operations and running numbers in their 
offices. The other workgroups are mostly staff as well to generate good ideas to bring 
to the clerks on the PIE Committee. She also asked if more staff members were 
needed, and Mr. Welty replied that all newcomers were welcomed.  
 
Clerk Roth pointed out that the Future and Wholistic Workgroup is where the heart of 
performances measures will be worked on but is not as big as case weights, since 

7



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

that has been used to apply to real dollars in the budget process. Case weights has 
more of a focus at the moment than performance measures, but she still has really 
high hopes to one day roll out some different ideas on what to measure and how to 
measure.  
 
Clerk Russell asked Mr. Welty if the cases and case weights would be done for the 
next budget cycle. It was not used in the current budget cycle. She felt it looked bad 
to get to the budget process, and clerks start to question the data. She specifically 
wanted to know the timeline of the review, and if it can be moved up earlier. It was 
used previously then not used the next year and she felt that when it comes to 
budgeting, we should be consistent with what models we're using and what data 
points.  
 
Clerk Roth agreed with Clerk Russell's observations and committee to whatever work 
needed to be done, she would make it a priority for the PIE Committee to get the data 
review done. 
 

5. Agenda Item 5 – Cases/Subcases Update 
 
Mr. Welty provided the review of cases and subcases data for this quarter. For June, 
we have a total number of 430,000 cases which is 3% below last June, for July, we had 
337,000 which was 27,000 above last July. The two months averaged out. Cases are 
at a plateau in terms of the total number of cases. July is usually one of the lowest 
number of cases in a fiscal year, so year-to-date, the total number of cases is 3.8 
million, which is 17%, below 2021. 2021 saw a pretty significant anomaly in April to 
July time period where there was a ton of PIP cases, a ton of small claims cases that 
came through completely unexpected. Comparing 2022 to 2021 is not necessarily fair. 
Cases are trending downward, which can be seen in a few other sub-case types. A 
reduction of 17% is a big number, but it's not something that was unexpected, as we 
knew that PIP cases and auto glass cases weren't sustainable. At the same time, cases 
drive our revenue, especially in the civil arena. As it relates to some of the trends, civil 
traffic continues to lag behind its historical levels, but is up over last year. There's a 6% 
increase over last year, but we are still 10% down between our current year, and what 
we use as our baseline year of 2018-19, because that was the last year pre-pandemic.  
 
My. Welty continued his explanation that county civil also continues to slow, there were 
6,200 fewer county civil cases in June and July this year compared to last year. The 
average county civil cases per month was 75,000 last year versus 64,000 this year. 
There are some of PIP cases wrapped up in that court division, so we would expect to 
see that come down. County Civil cases really drive some of our revenues because on 
a case a $280 filing fee to the clerk. With every decrease in cases is a loss in revenue 
to the clerk's budget. Circuit civil continues to climb; however, we will see a big decline 
next year when the jurisdictional changes happen in circuit civil. Starting January 1, 
2023, they'll go to $50,000 instead of $30,000. On the outputs report, we have kept 
the categories the same so that we can do a comparison historically between them. 

8



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

CCOC will do our best to make sure that we keep accurate apples to apples 
comparisons. And track then in terms of what we're seeing in trends for those historical 
sub-case times. On the criminal side, criminal is slightly up in terms of total number of 
cases this year, felony is down about 7%, criminal traffic is down 3%, and delinquency 
is up 25%. Looking at it historically, the criminal divisions in 2021 is 17% below what 
we had in 2018-19. While we are seeing an increase year over year, we still have 17% 
below what we were in 2018-19 and it is a little bit lower than 2017-18 as well.  
 
Clerk Green asked Mr. Welty if he has any ideas or clues behind these downward 
trends as part of his discussion with the (Revenue Estimating Conference) REC. Mr. 
Welty said that the REC projects five years’ worth of revenue and when they do a 
projection in one year, they carry that projection forward to the next year. In 2022-23, 
the REC projected some pretty significant increases in civil cases, specifically in the 
foreclosure and eviction arena. While evictions have come back to their historical 
norms, we have not seen foreclosures come back to their historical norms. 
 
On a monthly average for homestead foreclosures, in the current fiscal year, we're 
averaging 1,000 homestead foreclosures a month, but in CFY 2019-20 it was 1,049. 
That was at the beginning of the pandemic. In CFY 2020-21, it dropped all the way 
down to 473. Mr. Welty stated that he preferred to use CFY 2018-19 data as an anchor 
because it was pre-pandemic. On a monthly average, we had 2,027 monthly 
homestead foreclosures. We are at about half of what our average is on homestead 
residential foreclosures. The REC had originally projected for this year, a bounce back 
to the 2018-19 levels. During the July REC meeting, they actually brought that bounce 
back way down and that's what we're seeing. We know we have no more moratoriums, 
but when the moratorium ended in January, things didn't go hog wild, so the REC 
adjusted that downward to make it a more gradual and sloping upward trend. 
 

6. Agenda Item 6 – Other Business 
 
Ms. Bruner explained that a county reached out wanting more information on the 
recent changes that were approved by the Executive Council regarding case counting 
and other activities of the PIE Committee so staff is in the process of drafting a 
comprehensive memo that will cover all of the changes over the last fiscal year that 
are going to be implemented October 1, 2022, so you can have all that in one 
document. The clean version of the case counting business rules will also be posted 
online. 
 
Mr. Welty also reviewed some direction provided by the Executive Council regarding 
the Uniform Payment Plan. Last year, as a result of legislation that required clerks to 
have a uniform payment plan, this was a push to make things easier for the consumer, 
your constituents. The new form was implemented in January of this year is when 
clerks were supposed to start using the uniform payment plan. It was a long form, and 
we knew it was long. Language was copied from the current indigency report or 
indigency form. The CCOC keeps hearing that the form too long and it takes too much 

9



 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 31, 2022 PIE COMMITTEE MEETING 

time to fill out it. We have been instructed to looking at doing a significant revision to 
that uniform payment plan. Luckily, because of the way that we structured the 
legislation, CCOC has total control over the form. At the next PIE Committee meeting 
staff will bring a new recommendation for the payment plan that is significantly 
streamlined, that uses plain language, and will hopefully be easier for your constituents 
to fill out and easier for you to be able to utilize as it relates to creating payment plans. 
 
 
Clerk Green mentioned that she has had these discussions and that the structure of 
the current form, as it relates to civil traffic, may be a little too complicated and maybe 
requesting information that might not be necessary for a three-month or four-month 
payment plan. Mr. Welty explained that he liked the idea Seminole County brought up 
as it relates to having an EX version like your taxes; you have your 1040 and your 
1040EZ. CCOC staff will explore that idea. Clerk Green agreed that there is definitely 
an interest in a simplified form.  
 
For the next meeting, we are looking at November 30 or December 1. Ms. Bruner will 
send out a poll to the committee members. For CFY 2022-23, the PIE Committee is 
looking at scheduling our meetings for the entire year in advance. CCOC Staff is 
working with Clerk Roth to schedule quarterly meetings. 
 
With no further comments, the PIE Committee adjourned the meeting at 1:46 PM. 

10



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3 
 
DATE:     December 2, 2022 
SUBJECT:    CFY 2021-22 Quarter 4 PMAP Report 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Information Only 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
CCOC completed the CFY 2021-22 Quarter 4 Performance Measures and Action Plans (PMAP) 
report, posted it to the CCOC website (https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr) and submitted it 
to the Legislature. 
 
Report Highlights 
The Performance Measures and Action Plans report identifies the counties not meeting 
workload performance standards for specific measures.  
 

Performance Standards Number of Counties Requiring a Plan 
Collections 50 
Filing - Timeliness 12 
Docketing - Timeliness 8 
Timely Juror Payments 5 

 
Performance Measure Spotlight 
With the completion of the Quarter 4 PMAP report, CCOC is also providing a six-year history of 
each county’s Collection Performance for each fiscal year. This chart combines the 
assessment and the 5-Quarter collections of the Circuit Criminal, County Criminal, Criminal 
Traffic, Juvenile Delinquency, and Civil Traffic court divisions.  
 
From October 1, 2020, to September 30, 2021, there was $716.4 million assessed in criminal 
and traffic court divisions. In CFY 2021-22, clerks collected 53.41 percent of those 
assessments. This collection rate is the second lowest rate in the last seven years, with the 
pandemic year of CFY 2019-20 being the only year lower.  
 
Hurricanes Ian and Nicole will have a temporary impact on case filings and civil traffic 
citations, driving revenue from October and November below their historical norms.  

11

https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr


 

 

CFY 2021-22 QUARTER 4 PMAP REPORT 

 
There were 109,339 fewer county civil cases, down 12 percent in CFY 2021-22. As civil cases 
continue a downward trend statewide, clerks can offset the civil revenue declines with 
increased collections on the criminal and traffic fines owed. This report spotlights the 
importance of continued reliance on compliance efforts.  
 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Information Only 
 
 
LEAD STAFF: Jason Welty, CCOC Deputy Executive Director 

Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Collections Performance - Criminal and Traffic Divisions – Six-Year History 
 

12



County CFY 2016-17 CFY 2017-18 CFY 2018-19 CFY 2019-20 CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22

Alachua 69% 66% 61% 55% 69% 59%

Baker 48% 41% 44% 52% 38% 45%

Bay 46% 43% 40% 34% 35% 38%

Bradford 75% 59% 68% 74% 72% 54%

Brevard 55% 53% 55% 53% 54% 55%

Broward 60% 59% 61% 62% 57% 66%

Calhoun 43% 38% 30% 33% 22% 35%

Charlotte 35% 55% 46% 53% 56% 50%

Citrus 36% 42% 39% 39% 43% 32%

Clay 69% 73% 62% 66% 71% 72%

Collier 75% 41% 59% 50% 62% 69%

Columbia 57% 44% 45% 41% 59% 55%

Desoto 37% 34% 44% 49% 46% 50%

Dixie 33% 34% 41% 49% 58% 30%

Duval 52% 54% 54% 52% 53% 58%

Escambia 45% 44% 36% 23% 33% 35%

Flagler 57% 60% 65% 71% 60% 68%

Franklin 47% 41% 39% 44% 48% 53%

Gadsden 67% 60% 62% 55% 57% 66%

Gilchrist 62% 45% 39% 67% 76% 48%

Glades 81% 80% 77% 83% 80% 67%

Gulf 45% 48% 44% 39% 42% 50%

Hamilton 58% 64% 62% 57% 60% 74%

Hardee 68% 59% 61% 55% 34% 60%

Hendry 57% 59% 54% 66% 74% 71%

Hernando 56% 50% 42% 38% 44% 44%

Highlands 25% 34% 28% 34% 43% 48%

Hillsborough 50% 49% 44% 43% 54% 41%

Holmes 31% 34% 34% 29% 38% 37%

Indian River 64% 55% 57% 57% 60% 58%

Jackson 64% 51% 58% 56% 58% 63%

Jefferson 85% 79% 82% 80% 82% 78%

Lafayette 23% 54% 46% 31% 46% 18%

Lake 47% 48% 51% 47% 49% 49%

Collections Performance - Criminal and Civil Traffic Divisions

1 of 2 Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/22

Agenda Item 3 - Attachment 1

13



County CFY 2016-17 CFY 2017-18 CFY 2018-19 CFY 2019-20 CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22

Collections Performance - Criminal and Civil Traffic Divisions

Lee 65% 64% 63% 60% 65% 59%

Leon 56% 49% 50% 43% 44% 47%

Levy 53% 66% 53% 53% 63% 72%

Liberty 43% 68% 70% 62% 54% 73%

Madison 58% 67% 64% 70% 66% 55%

Manatee 53% 49% 48% 41% 61% 50%

Marion 53% 50% 47% 37% 42% 36%

Martin 46% 69% 66% 61% 59% 68%

Miami-Dade 63% 65% 66% 63% 53% 56%

Monroe 69% 73% 66% 69% 71% 74%

Nassau 68% 65% 63% 65% 60% 47%

Okaloosa 40% 43% 46% 51% 55% 57%

Okeechobee 47% 43% 42% 39% 45% 31%

Orange 61% 60% 60% 59% 63% 54%

Osceola 42% 53% 44% 46% 60% 67%

Palm Beach 42% 64% 58% 59% 66% 64%

Pasco 52% 53% 49% 41% 47% 48%

Pinellas 53% 55% 49% 49% 52% 46%

Polk 43% 44% 46% 43% 45% 46%

Putnam 32% 30% 36% 30% 28% 26%

Saint Johns 60% 59% 57% 60% 61% 57%

Saint Lucie 60% 60% 60% 63% 69% 62%

Santa Rosa 57% 55% 56% 58% 55% 48%

Sarasota 62% 59% 59% 55% 61% 63%

Seminole 56% 57% 61% 46% 54% 62%

Sumter 62% 63% 56% 52% 59% 57%

Suwannee 34% 43% 43% 42% 62% 50%

Taylor 44% 25% 39% 53% 48% 41%

Union 57% 59% 43% 34% 39% 49%

Volusia 51% 44% 54% 51% 53% 50%

Wakulla 64% 57% 54% 50% 57% 53%

Walton 54% 61% 60% 54% 63% 57%

Washington 45% 35% 32% 30% 33% 41%
Grand Total 54% 55% 54% 52% 55% 53%

2 of 2 Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/22

Agenda Item 3 - Attachment 1

14



County Peer
Group

CFY 2016-17 CFY 2017-18 CFY 2018-19 CFY 2019-20 CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22

Calhoun 1 43% 38% 30% 33% 22% 35%

Lafayette 1 23% 54% 46% 31% 46% 18%

Liberty 1 43% 68% 70% 62% 54% 73%
Union 1 57% 59% 43% 34% 39% 49%

Baker 2 48% 41% 44% 52% 38% 45%

Dixie 2 33% 34% 41% 49% 58% 30%

Franklin 2 47% 41% 39% 44% 48% 53%

Gilchrist 2 62% 45% 39% 67% 76% 48%

Glades 2 81% 80% 77% 83% 80% 67%

Gulf 2 45% 48% 44% 39% 42% 50%

Hamilton 2 58% 64% 62% 57% 60% 74%

Holmes 2 31% 34% 34% 29% 38% 37%

Jefferson 2 85% 79% 82% 80% 82% 78%

Taylor 2 44% 25% 39% 53% 48% 41%
Washington 2 45% 35% 32% 30% 33% 41%

Bradford 3 75% 59% 68% 74% 72% 54%

Desoto 3 37% 34% 44% 49% 46% 50%

Gadsden 3 67% 60% 62% 55% 57% 66%

Hardee 3 68% 59% 61% 55% 34% 60%

Hendry 3 57% 59% 54% 66% 74% 71%

Jackson 3 64% 51% 58% 56% 58% 63%

Levy 3 53% 66% 53% 53% 63% 72%

Madison 3 58% 67% 64% 70% 66% 55%

Okeechobee 3 47% 43% 42% 39% 45% 31%

Suwannee 3 34% 43% 43% 42% 62% 50%
Wakulla 3 64% 57% 54% 50% 57% 53%

Citrus 4 36% 42% 39% 39% 43% 32%

Columbia 4 57% 44% 45% 41% 59% 55%

Flagler 4 57% 60% 65% 71% 60% 68%

Highlands 4 25% 34% 28% 34% 43% 48%

Indian River 4 64% 55% 57% 57% 60% 58%

Nassau 4 68% 65% 63% 65% 60% 47%

Putnam 4 32% 30% 36% 30% 28% 26%

Sumter 4 62% 63% 56% 52% 59% 57%

Collections Performance - Criminal and Civil Traffic Divisions

Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/22 15



County Peer
Group

CFY 2016-17 CFY 2017-18 CFY 2018-19 CFY 2019-20 CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22

Collections Performance - Criminal and Civil Traffic Divisions

Walton 4 54% 61% 60% 54% 63% 57%

Alachua 5 69% 66% 61% 55% 69% 59%

Charlotte 5 35% 55% 46% 53% 56% 50%

Clay 5 69% 73% 62% 66% 71% 72%

Hernando 5 56% 50% 42% 38% 44% 44%

Martin 5 46% 69% 66% 61% 59% 68%

Monroe 5 69% 73% 66% 69% 71% 74%

Okaloosa 5 40% 43% 46% 51% 55% 57%

Saint Johns 5 60% 59% 57% 60% 61% 57%
Santa Rosa 5 57% 55% 56% 58% 55% 48%

Bay 6 46% 43% 40% 34% 35% 38%

Brevard 6 55% 53% 55% 53% 54% 55%

Collier 6 75% 41% 59% 50% 62% 69%

Escambia 6 45% 44% 36% 23% 33% 35%

Lake 6 47% 48% 51% 47% 49% 49%

Leon 6 56% 49% 50% 43% 44% 47%

Manatee 6 53% 49% 48% 41% 61% 50%

Marion 6 53% 50% 47% 37% 42% 36%

Osceola 6 42% 53% 44% 46% 60% 67%

Pasco 6 52% 53% 49% 41% 47% 48%

Saint Lucie 6 60% 60% 60% 63% 69% 62%

Sarasota 6 62% 59% 59% 55% 61% 63%
Seminole 6 56% 57% 61% 46% 54% 62%

Duval 7 52% 54% 54% 52% 53% 58%

Lee 7 65% 64% 63% 60% 65% 59%

Pinellas 7 53% 55% 49% 49% 52% 46%

Polk 7 43% 44% 46% 43% 45% 46%
Volusia 7 51% 44% 54% 51% 53% 50%

Broward 8 60% 59% 61% 62% 57% 66%

Hillsborough 8 50% 49% 44% 43% 54% 41%

Miami-Dade 8 63% 65% 66% 63% 53% 56%

Orange 8 61% 60% 60% 59% 63% 54%

Palm Beach 8 42% 64% 58% 59% 66% 64%
Grand Total 54% 55% 54% 52% 55% 53%

Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/22 16



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
 
DATE:     December 2, 2022 
SUBJECT:    Cases/Subcases Update 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Information Only 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
 
Case Counting Review: CCOC reviewed the CFY 2021-22 Outputs reports and has aggregated 
the new cases for CFY 2021-22. The PIE Committee will forward this report to the Case 
Counting Workgroup to begin its work.  
 
The Case Counting Workgroup, chaired by Clerk Cooney, reviews how cases are counted 
statewide to identify any areas that need attention or if there is justification for outliers. For 
the CCOC Budget Committee to incorporate weighted workload measures into the budget 
process, the outputs must be reported correctly at the sub-case type level.  
 
Cases and Subcases Update1 
 
Case Type Sep-19 Sep-20 Sep-21 Sep-22 
Criminal 77,343 67,419 70,135      70,922  
Civil 100,847 107,580 114,210    116,848  
Civil Traffic 246,158 168,588 188,423    204,558  
Grand Total 424,348 343,587 372,768    392,328       
Case Type CFY 2018-19 CFY 2019-20 CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22 
Criminal 1,025,945 831,579 834,575  871,800  
Civil 1,300,533 1,235,817 1,534,853  1,416,250  
Civil Traffic 2,675,951 2,025,659 2,239,930  2,415,276  
Grand Total 5,002,429 4,093,055 4,609,358  4,703,326  

 
 

 
1 CFY 2021-22 and Sept 2021 numbers are under review and may change in future updates 

17



 

 

CASES/SUBCASES UPDATE 

 
 

• September 2022 Cases 
o The total cases reported were 392,328  

 This amount is 19,560 or 5 percent, above the last September 
 The year-over-year increase is primarily driven by an increase in civil 

traffic cases, up 7 percent from last year 
 Criminal cases were down 1 percent 
 Civil cases were up 1 percent 

 
• CFY 2021-22 YTD Cases and Trend Recap 

o The total cases reported were 4,703,326 
 There were 93,968 more cases than CFY 2020-21, a 2 percent increase 

 
o Civil Traffic continues to lag historical levels but is up over last year 

 There was an 8 percent increase over last year, but a 10 percent gap 
between the current year and the baseline year of CFY 2018-19 
 

o County Civil continues to slow 
 There were 109,339 fewer county civil cases, down 12 percent in CFY 

2021-22  
 

o Circuit Civil continues to decline 
 Circuit civil cases declined 9 percent year over year 

 
o Criminal is slightly up year over year, but down from historical levels 

 Felony is down 1 percent, misdemeanor is up 7 percent, criminal traffic 
is up 4 percent, and delinquency is up 25 percent 

 The Criminal Divisions in CFY 2021-22 are 15 percent below the 
baseline year of CFY 2018-19 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Information Only 
 
 
LEAD STAFF: Jason Welty, CCOC Deputy Executive Director 

Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. CFY 2021-22 Cases and Percent Change 

18



County CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22 Percent Change
Alachua 53,594 52,588 -2%
Baker 4,222 4,180 -1%
Bay 46,970 47,803 2%
Bradford 10,372 10,799 4%
Brevard 96,565 94,404 -2%
Broward 406,169             384,048             -5%
Calhoun 2,253 3,649 62%
Charlotte 31,106 32,351 4%
Citrus 26,523 28,136 6%
Clay 40,751 41,214 1%
Collier 64,154 70,051 9%
Columbia 15,799 17,339 10%
Desoto 6,710 6,041 -10%
Dixie 3,236 3,038 -6%
Duval 282,533             258,334             -9%
Escambia 53,290 54,536 2%
Flagler 15,318 16,535 8%
Franklin 2,197 2,556 16%
Gadsden 12,170 10,782 -11%
Gilchrist 3,074 3,233 5%
Glades 5,527 4,303 -22%
Gulf 2,018 2,184 8%
Hamilton 3,993 4,838 21%
Hardee 5,966 5,837 -2%
Hendry 8,134 6,203 -24%
Hernando 30,277 30,304 0%
Highlands 13,495 14,378 7%
Hillsborough 326,810             315,462             -3%
Holmes 4,476 3,847 -14%
Indian River 23,486 22,228 -5%
Jackson 10,718 9,072 -15%
Jefferson 3,602 4,414 23%
Lafayette 709 1,046 48%
Lake 56,364 59,162 5%
Lee 104,594             104,514             0%
Leon 42,345 49,242 16%
Levy 9,741 10,983 13%
Liberty 2,065 2,120 3%

Total Cases CFY 2020-21 and CFY 2021-22

Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/2

Agenda Item 4 - Attachment 1

19



County CFY 2020-21 CFY 2021-22 Percent Change

Total Cases CFY 2020-21 and CFY 2021-22

Madison 9,524 9,809 3%
Manatee 59,962 64,901 8%
Marion 49,097 48,640 -1%
Martin 27,485 29,722 8%
Miami-Dade 872,423             953,794             9%
Monroe 37,707 37,463 -1%
Nassau 13,358 13,766 3%
Okaloosa 36,025 34,400 -5%
Okeechobee 7,350 7,569 3%
Orange 417,794             411,804             -1%
Osceola 89,445 88,906 -1%
Palm Beach 302,280             299,470             -1%
Pasco 75,564 75,536 0%
Pinellas 162,909             174,485             7%
Polk 129,457             144,163             11%
Putnam 10,785 12,306 14%
Saint Johns 35,480 40,593 14%
Saint Lucie 58,195 61,646 6%
Santa Rosa 31,169 33,048 6%
Sarasota 78,450 90,398 15%
Seminole 98,743 94,384 -4%
Sumter 17,712 20,198 14%
Suwannee 9,468 7,533 -20%
Taylor 5,290 5,004 -5%
Union 1,487 1,778 20%
Volusia 116,609             122,589             5%
Wakulla 6,394 6,357 -1%
Walton 12,552 15,797 26%
Washington 5,318 5,513 4%
Grand Total 4,609,358        4,703,326        2%

Created by CCOC Staff 6/15/2

Agenda Item 4 - Attachment 1

20



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
DATE:     December 2, 2022 
SUBJECT:    Uniform Payment Plan 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Review and approve 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
The Uniform Payment Plan was last modified and adopted for use at the March 8, 2022, 
Executive Council meeting. There was much discussion regarding the length of the form, the 
amount of time it takes to fill it out, and its impact on Clerks' operations. The Performance 
Improvement and Efficiencies (PIE) Committee was asked to consider changes to the form. 
 
When the form was originally developed for use in December 2021, several of the larger 
counties requested the additional detail in each of the sections. However, after further 
discussions since implementation, it appears that a simplified version for certain case types 
would be more efficient, especially in smaller counties. 
 
Clerks retain the ability to made minor modifications to the form to fit local practices. 
 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Review and approve 
 
 
LEAD STAFF: Jason Welty, CCOC Deputy Executive Director 

Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Uniform Payment Plan - Simplified 

21



COUNTY NAME 
Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 
Payment Plan Agreement Request Form 

Clerk 
Seal 

 
Full Name:  ____________________________________________________________ 
Citation Number(s) ______________________________________________________ 
Case Number(s) ________________________________________________________ 
 
Address 1: ___________________________________________________________________ 
Address 2: ___________________________________________________________________ 
City: ________________________________ State _______________ Zip Code _________________ 
Mobile/Cell #: _________________________ Email: _________________________________________ 
 
I understand that by providing a mailing address, I am updating my address and contact information for 
future notices. I also acknowledge and verify that the mailing address is correct. I will keep my address, cell 
phone number, email address, and other contact information updated with the clerk’s office so that I may 
receive payment plan notifications. By signing and submitting this application, you consent to receive 
electronic notifications. 
 

Financial Information 

Monthly Household Income $____________________Monthly Household Expenses $____________________ 

Monthly Amount I Can Afford to Pay on this Payment Plan $____________________ 

 
I am requesting a payment plan agreement be established for the above-listed citation(s) or case(s). A 
payment schedule will be created as referenced below and provided to me. I understand that the monthly 
payment will be due until paid in full.  
 
I further understand that failure to comply with the payment plan will cause a default of the agreement, 
which may result in a notification being sent to the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to 
suspend my driver’s license and prohibit me from renewing my vehicle registration. Additionally, the case 
will be referred to a collection agency for further processing with an additional collection agency fee of up 
to {40%} of the amount due. When the case is referred to a collection agency, this amount will be added to 
the balance. 
 
Once approved, the clerk will {email} you the terms and instructions on paying your payment {online, in-
person, by phone, etc.}. I understand the clerk charges a {$5 per month or $25 one-time} payment plan fee. 
I also understand that [Credit Card Vendor Name Here] charges a fee of [Credit Card Service Charge Here] 
per payment when making payments by credit card. This agreement will not be in effect until your first 
payment has been received and processed. Please contact our office at {xxx-xxx-xxxx, email, or website} 
if you have any questions. 
 
Signature:  _____________________________________ Date: ___________________________ 
 

THIS SECTION IS TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CLERK’S OFFICE 
Total Amount Owed $_________________ 
The first payment of $___________________ will be due on ___________________ 
The subsequent payments of $___________________ will start on _________________ and be due on the _______ 
day of the month until paid in full.  
 

Failure to keep the plan current may result in a suspended driver’s license and the inability to renew a 
vehicle registration. 

 

22


	0 Packet Cover 120222
	1 AGENDA PIE Meeting 120222 v2
	2 PIE Meeting Minutes 083122 DRAFT
	3 MEMO CFY2122 Q4 PMAP Report
	3.1 Collections Rate History
	3.1.1 Collections Rate History by PG
	4 MEMO Cases and Subcases
	4.1 CFY 2021-22 Cases and Percent Change
	5 MEMO Uniform Payment Plan
	5.1 Uniform Payment Plan - EZ



